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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Shareholders
your Directors presenting the 25th Annual Report together with the Audited accounts of your

company for the financial year ended 31't March, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

your Company's performance for the financial year ended March 3L,2025 is summarized below:

Amount in (t) Lacs

Partie ulars For the Financial Year endcd

Revenue from Operations

Other lncome 3.32

Total lncome 3.s3

Expenses:

Operating ExPenditure

I Depreciation & Amortization Expenset' I

Total Expenses LL.44

Tax Expense

Profit for the year{PAT)

Other Comprehensive lncome (Net of tax)

Total Comprehen'sive Income for the period

We offer:-
. Share Broking

. Securities Broking

. Vyaj cadla / Badla

. Porlfolio Management

o Private Placement

. New lssues

. lnvestment Consultancy

(16.e3)

26.773.56

(4.741

Nandi Commercial
148, Camac Street, Sth Floor, Kolkata-700 017
Phone :2281-6279. Fax: 2281-6287
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RITURAJ

Profit Before Tax {PBT)

CIN : U51 1 09W82000PTC092403

31.03.2025 31.03.2024

lncorne:

o.27 0.60

8.76

9.36

tL.44 25.60

25.60

(7.91) 177.241

0.39 (0.31)

{8.30}

9.84



COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE & FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the period under review, the company achieved revenue of Rs. 0.21 lacs EBITDA of Rs.

(7.91) lacs and PAT of Rs. (8.30) lacs as compared to revenue of Rs. 0.6 lacs EBITDA of Rs. (17.24)

lacs and PAT of Rs. (16.93) lacs respectively in the previous year.

The Sales of the company have decreased by 65% as compared to previous year.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on 31,1 March, 2025, paid up share capital of the Company was Rs. 36.20 lacs divided into 36,200

equity shares of Rs.100/- each. There was no change in share capital of the Company during the

Financial Y ear 2A24-25.

DIVIDEND AND TRANSFER TO RESERVES

ln terms of the Dividend Distibution Policy, as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, equity shareholders of the Company may expect dividend if the

Company is having surplus funds and after taking into consideration the relevant internal and

external factors as mentioned in the said Policy. Accordingly, considering the cash position, fund

requirements for growth of business of your Company and the brought forward losses, the Board of

Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended March 3L, 2425.

Accordingly, no amount is also proposed to be transferred to the reserves of your Company.

FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS AS PER IND-AS.

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2O25 are in accordance with the lndian

Accounting Standards (lND-AS) notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of lndia,

which have already become applicable to the Company.

REVISTON OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has not carried out any revision in its financial stAtements in any of the three

preceding financial years as per the requirement under Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary during the year under review. The

100% subsidiary of Lee & Nee Softwares (Exports) Ltd.

Company itself is a

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of

Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies (Acceptance of

Deposits) Rules, 2014. Therefore no such amount on account of principal or interest on deposits

from public was outstanding as on the date of the Balance sheet.

Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not

Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.

in compliance with the
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PARTICULARSoFLoANs,GUARANTEESANDINVESTIUENTS

There are no Loans, Guarantees and lnvestments made under the provisions of section 185 of the

Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review'

DrsctosuREsUNDERSECI|ONl34(3x1)oFTHECOMPANIESACT',2013

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could

affecttheCompany,sfinancialpositionhaveoccurredbetweentheendofthefinancialyearofthe
Company and the date of this report'

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There are no contracts or arrangements with rerated parties referred to in section 1gg(1-) of the

Companies Act, 2013 except those which are mentioned in Note'19 appearing in the notes to

accounts forming part of financial Statements'

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Attractin8,enablingandretainingtalenthasbeenthecornerstoneoftheHumanResourcefunction
and the resurts underscore the important rore that human capitar prays in criticar strategic activities

such as growth.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

YourDirectorMiss'LeelaMurjani(DlN:02413222|retiresattheensuingAnnualGeneralMeeting
and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment'

Duringtheyearunderreview,thenon-executivedirectorsoftheCompanyhadnopecuniary
relationship or transactions with the company, other than_ sitting fees, commission' if any and

reimbursement of expenses incurred by ther.n or otherwise for the purpose of attending meetings

of the Board /Committee of the Company'

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of Section 149 for appointment of lndependent Directors do not apply to the

company.

BOARD MEFTINGS

The company has conducted four Board meetings during the financial year under r'evierar*

POLICY ON APPbINTMENT OF DIRECTOR AND REMUNERATION

The provisions of section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee are not applicable to the Company'

INTERNAL FINANCIAI CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

TheCompanyhasinplaceadequateinternalfinancialcontrolswithreferencetotheFinancial
statements. rhe controls are adequate ior. tn"'inB the orderl'::: :Il::::: 

t:ii::H: 
l[

;:1t""TrTT;.1ffi#ffi':J;:"1;',1'1"".o*o.nv's 
poricies. the safe guarding of assets'

prevention & detection of f3yfs-: "":t:;tYi*r.itv 
t"a completenett * 
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b.

DI RECTORS' RESPONSIBITITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 13 (3Xc) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the

best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for
that period;
(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of.adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors had laid down internalfinancial controls to be followed by the Company and such

internal financial conffols are adequate and are operating effectively.

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

Statutory Auditors

M/s. N H Agrawal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Registration No. 327511E),

were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company from the conclusion of Twenty Second

(22nd) Annual General Meeting till conclusion of Twenty Seventh (27th)Annual General Meeting to

be held in the year 2O27, as required under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

For the year under review, the statutory auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the

independence criteria required under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Auditors' Report contains 'Unmodified Opinion' on the financial statements of your empany,

for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and there are no qualifications reservations or adverse

remarks in their report.

Qualifications in Audit RePorts

The statutory auditor's report does not contain any qualifications, reseruations, or

or disclaimer.

adverse remarks
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c. Cost records and cost audit

Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of
Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried out

by the company.

d. Fraud's reported by auditors other than those which are reportable to the central tovernment
ulsLas$21

There were no frauds reported by the auditors under section 143(L2) of Companies Act, 2013

during their course of audit for the financial year 2O24-25.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company's existence are very minimal.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that the applicabte Secretarial Standards, i.e. 55-L and SS -2, relating to
'Meetings of the Board of Directors' and 'General Meeting' respectively, have been duly followed
by the Company.

vrcrl MECHANTSM/WHTSTTE BTOWER POUCY

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors,

employees and others who are associated with the Company in confirmation with Section 777(9) of
the Act and Regulation22 of Listing Regulations to report their concerns about unethical behavior,

actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct. The Policy provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of Employees/ Directors who avail the mechanism.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAT RETURN

The Extract of the Annual return in form MGT-9 is not required.to be annexed to the Board's report
as per the amendment to section 92(3) of the companies Act, 2013 and rules framed therein.

However, companies having a website are required to provide the web link of the same, wherein

the annual return in form MGT-7A shall be uploaded.

As the Company does not have any website, a copy of the Annual return will be araitaffiat the
registered office of,the company.

DETAILS OF APPTICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURTNG THE YEAR ATONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE

END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

During the year under review,
pending under the lnsolvency

Subsidiaries.

no application was made by the Company or proceedings were

and Bankruptcy Code, 20L6 against the Company or any of its



THEDETAILSoFDIFFEREI{GEBETWEENIMouNToFTHEvALuATIoNDoNEATTHETIMEoF
ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AilD THE 

'A'UATiO* 
DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR

FINANCIAL IUSNTUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

The company has not done any one_time settrement with any of the Lenders / Financiar rnstitutions

/ Banks of any loan facility provided nv trt"*, ttt"refore disclosure under the Biven head is not

applicable.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The company has not deveroped and impremented any corporate sociar Responsib,ity initiatives as

the said provisions are not applicable to the Company'

coNsERVATloN oF ENERGY, TEcHNotoGY ABsoRPTloN, F.REIGN EX.HANGE EARNINGS AND

ourco puRsuANT To pRovrsro*s oF licrron 1i!4 oF THE coMpANrES Acr, 2013 READ wlrH

THE COMPAUTEs (nccouNTs) RULE 2Ot4'

The statement pursuant to section 134(3) (m) of the.companies Act, 2013 read with Rule s(3) of

theCompany,s(Accounts)Rules20ladonotapplytoourCompany.Therewasnoforeign

"-lf.."t"i^tlow 
or outflow during the year under review'

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

There are no emproyees fa*ing within the provisions of section 13a(3xq) of the companies Act'

2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of The companies (lppoint*tni and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules' 2014'

DIscLosUREsUNDERSEXUALHARASSMENToFWoMENATWoRKPLACE(PREVENTIoN,

PROHlBlrloN & REDRESSAL) ACT', 2013

There are no compraints from any of the emproyees in the company during the Financial Year

2a24.25,thusitisnotrequiredtoconstitutelnternalComplaintsCommittee(lCC)pursuanttothe
legislation,Prevention,ProhibitionandRedressalofSexua|,HarassmentofWomenatWorkplace

Act 2013' as the same is not applicable on the Company'

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

)re everyone feels resPected and

The Company is committed to a safe' inclusive workplace wht

empowered.lnlinewiththePoSHAct,ithasadoptedan.anti-sexualharassmentpolicyand
constituted an lnternal Committee' Complaints (if any)' including those related to sexual

harassment, Were received during the year under review.:

Year ended 2025

-Y"ar 

end ed 2024
Particulars

harassment under POSH Act

NIL NIL

+*t/* /{^<*'$\t\9-p*}



MATERN ITY BEN EFIT AFFIRMATIONS

The company confirms that it has followed the Maternity Benefit Act, L961' All eligible women

employees received the required benefits, including paid leave, continued salary and service' and

post.maternitysupportlikenursingbreaksandflexibleWorkoptions.

MATERNITYBENEFITPRoVIDEDBYTHECoMPANYUNDERMATERNIWBENEFITAgTI9SI

The company confirms that it has followed the Maternity Benefit Act, 1951' All eligible women

urnptov"", received the required benefits, including paid leave, continued salary and service' and

post.maternitysupportlikenursingbreaksandflexibleworkoptions.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Presently,thecompanydoesnothaveanyEmployeeStockoptionduringtheperiodunderreview'

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

your Directors place on record their appreciation for the help and co-operation,received by them

from their bankers and for the dedicated services rendered by the employees of your company at

all levels and thank the company's customers, vendors, investors and academic partners for their

continuous support. our consistent growth is possible because of their hard work' solidarity' co-

operation and suPPort.

Place: Kolkata

Date: 29th May, 2025

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Rituraj Shares Broking Pvt' Ltd'

Rfhral Shares Broklng Pvt' Ltd" Rlhrrai Bhares tsroklng A/{. Ltd'
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Mahesh GuPta Leela Murjani

(DlN:01606647) (DlN:02413222)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial statements of Rituraj Shares Broking

Private Limited ("the company"l, which comprise the Balance sheet as at MarchSl 2025,

the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Cash FIow

Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the

lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the

Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner.so required and give a true and

fair view in conformitywith the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state

of affairs of the company as at March-31,2025, its loss (including other comprehensive

income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date'

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the lnd AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing (SAs),as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under

those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

lnd AS financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in

accordance with the 'Code of Ethics 'issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of

lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial

statements under the provisions oi th" Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and'the Cqle of

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basiq for our audit opinion on the lnd AS financial statements'

Other lnformation

The Company's Board of Oireciors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,

Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder's lnformation, Out does not include the lnd AS financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.

Mumbai Branch : fu62 Highway Apartments B/H sion Fort Garden, Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 022



Our opinion on the lnd AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we

do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially

inconsistent with the finincial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otn"*ir" appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard'

Responsibitities of Management for the lnd AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of

the Act with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements that give a true

and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive

income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance- with the

accounting principles generally alcepted in lndia, including the lndian Accounting Standards

(tnd AS) Jpecified undLr section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting

itanOaiOs) Rules,2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appiopriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preprraiion and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

Company'iability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related

to going-concern and using the going-concern basis of accounting unless management

eith-er iritends to liquidate the Com[any or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative

but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial

reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of theFinancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high

t"u"t of ur*urrn"", but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanoe with SAs

will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arisdfrom

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

1^"6o*uUfy be ekpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these lnd AS financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

a



,
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act,

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and

the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of thelnd AS financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind ASfinancial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or

in aggregate, makes it probable that economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable

useiof the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the mqtters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the lnd ASfinancial statements for the

financial year ended March 31, 2O25and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe

these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure

about the mattel or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements



2.

As required by the companies (Audito/s Report) order,.2020 ("the order")' issued by

the central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act'

;;;;'ilin"; nnn"*ure 1,,a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4

of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

ofourknowledgeandbeliefWerenecessaryforthepurposesofouraudit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required-by law have been kept by the

'-' Corpuny so fai ur'iiupp"rrs from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of.Profit and, Loss,including the statement of

other Compreneniir" tn"o*e, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes

in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaidlnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting

standards specifLd under section 133 of the Act, read with companies (lndian

Accounting dtandards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March

3l,ZO}StarenonrecoruuytrrgBoardofDirectors,noneofthedirectorsis
disqualified u, on rrrfaicn 31,'2125ft;;-Ueing appointed as a director in terms of

Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(0 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to lnd

AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls' refer to our

separate Report in "Annexute 2" to this repoft;

(g) Based on our audit, we rgno.rtth.atlhe provisions of section 197 read with schedule

V to the nct ,re not appfiianfe to tfre bo*puny since the Company is not a public

company as OetiniO unO", sectioni(Zt) ot tfrL Act' Accordingly' reporting under

section 197(16) is not applicable'

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in'the Auditor's Report in accordance

with Rule rr oti6l Compani"t (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014'as amended in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

US:

i. The company has no pending litigations on its financial position in itslnd AS

financial statements

ii. -The company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts

for which theie were any materialforeseeable losses; -€

iii.Therewerenoamountswhichwererequiredtobetransferred,tothelnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no fund's have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

company to or in any other persontsl 
,or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities

(,,tntermediaries,,), with the understaholng, whether recorded in writing or

otrerwise, lnri if'" tntermeOlary 
-shall, 

wfiether, directly or indirectly lend or

I
1.



invest in other persons or entities identified in 3nY''^1n1:l.Yhut=oever 
by or on

behalf of the company ("ultimate.Beneticiaries;'; or provide any guarantee'

l""utit, ot the like on U6nuft of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b)Themanagementhasrepresentedthat,tothebest-ofitsknowledgeand
belief, no funds h;;; b;; received _ov irie company from any person(s) or

entity(ies), inctuOinl'tir;ig; 
"rtiti"s,1'fu'nOing 

Parties"j, w*h the understanding'

whether recorded in writing or othenruis", ir,rt the company shall, whether'

directly or indirectly,'f*J'"iinvest in oi;'ei persons or enlities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on o"t-rrii or the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries,,) or;;il; ,ny truruntee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c)Basedonsuchauditproceduresthatwereconsideredreasonableand
appropriate in the circumstanc"t' notning has come to, our notice that has

caused us to believe that ttre represe"ilti"ti under sub-clause (a) and (b)

contain any material misstatement'

v'TheCompanyhasnotdeclaredanydividendduringtheyear,soreportingunder
this clause for the compliance witn section 123 oflhe iompanies Act' 2013' is

not aPPlicable'

vi.Based on our examination which included test checks, the company' in respect

of financial v"u,. "nJuo 
gt Marctr 2o;;: 6li continued to use the accounting

software for maintaining books of a"cJr-nt wnicn has a feature of recording audit

trail (edit rogl raciliiy ;n"o 1.," rrr" 6r.i""n operated throughout the year for all

the relevant transatUoni recorded in ihl-tottrliare' Further' buring the course of

audit we did not 
"o*u 

,"rors any instanles of auOit trail feature being tampered

with. Furthermore, the audit trail has n*n-pr"""rved by the company as per the

staiutory requirements for record retention'

MembershiP Number: 129179

Place: Kolkata
Date: MaY 29,2025
U D I N : 251 29 1.7 }BM |WTF4074

I

For N.H. Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration Nu

Nitin Hu
Partner

0327511E,



Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on "Report on other legal and

regulatory requirements" of our report of even date on the financial statements of

Rituraj Shares erofing private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(i)(a)(A)TheCompanyhasmaintainedproperrecordsshowingfullparticulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment'

(B) The company has not capitalized any intangible assets during the year'

Accordingly, the requirement to report under the clause 3(ixaxg) of the order is

not aPPlicable to the ComPanY'

(b)AllProperty,PlantandEquipmenthasbeenphysicallyverifiedbythe
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on

such verification

(c) There is no immovable property held by the company and accordingly' the

requirementtoreportonclause3(i)(c)oftheorderisnotapplicable'

(d) The company has not revalued any Property, Plant and Equipment during the

yearendedMarch3l,2o2Sandaccordingly,therequirementtoreporton
clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company'

(e) According to information and explanations given to us' no proceedings have

been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami

property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act' 1988 and

rules made thereunder

(a)TheCompanyhasnoinventoryandaccording|y,therequirementtoreporton
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company'

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs'

-Five crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of

time of the year on the basis of security of current assets' Accordinglx' the

requirement to report on clause 3(iixb) of the order is not applicable to the

CorirPanY.

(a)lnouropinionand.besttotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous,the
company has provided loans and advances in the nature of loans and advances

during the year. Details of the loans and advances in the nature of loans are as

(ii )

(iii)

follows



Note: Balance outstanding amount reported also includes accrued interest on loan

(b) The company has provided loans and advances in the nature of loans and

advances. ln our opinion and explanations provided to us, the loans and advances

made during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the company

(c) The Company has granted loan (s) and or/advances in the nature of loans during

the year. The schedule of the repayment of principal and payment of interest has

been stipulated as "repayable on demand". As per the information and explanation

given to us and the books examined by us in respect of the loan and advances in the

nature of loans, no written schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest

has been stipulated and in the absence of such schedule, we are unable to comment

on the regularity of the repayment of principal amounts and payment of interest.

(d) As per the information and explanations given to us by the management, sime all

the loans given by the company are repayable on demand during the year, the

company has not demanded the repayment of full amount of such loans and interest,

we are unable to comment on the amount of overdue for more than ninety days as at

balance sheet date

}

(e)As per the information and explanation given to us by the management and books

examined by us there has not been any loan or advances in the nature of loan

granted whlch has been fallen due during the year, has been not been renewed or

extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loan given to the

(ln Lacs)

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate
amount granted/
provided during
the vear

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Subsidiaries
-Joint Ventures
-Associates
-Others

NIL NIL Others NIL

Balance
outstanding as
at balance
sheet date
Others
Subsidiaries

NIL NIL
49.08

NIL

same parties.



(iv)

(v)

(f)Aspertheinformationandexplanationgiventous,theCompanyhasgranted
loans and advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand or without specifying

the terms of the repayment. The details of the same are

Note: Loan repayable on demand reported also includes accrued interest on loan

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us' the

company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186

of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv)'of the order are not applicable'

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any

amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of

the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent aPP++sable'

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to

11," coriuny. According to the information and explanations given to us' no order

has been passed by the company Law Board or the National company Law Tribunal

or the RBI or any court or any other tribunal against the company in this regard'

The Central Government of lndia has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records

under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any services rendered by the

company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the order is not

Related
Parties
(ln lacs)

Promoters
(ln lacs)

All
Parties
includin
g

related
Party
(ln lacs)

Aggregate amounts of
loans/advances in nature
of loans where:
- Loan is rePaYable

on demand (A)
- Loan Agreement

does not sPecifY anY

terms or Period of

Total (A+B
Percentage
Loans/advances
nature of loans
the total loans.

of
in
to

(vi)

applicable to the ComPanY.



(vii) (a) The Company in generally is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities

undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,

emplOyees' State insurance, inCome-tax, sales-tax, serViCe tax, duty Of CuStOmS,

duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as applicable to

it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit

procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of

these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more

than six months from the date they became payable'

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues on

account of goods and service taxes, provident fund, employee's state

insurance, income tax, sales- tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,

value added tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been paid for

disPute as on 31 March 2025.

(viii) The company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously

unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax

Act, 1g61 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirementto reporton clause

3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company'

(ix) (a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the

payment of interest thereon to any lender. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)

of the Order are not aPPlicable'

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or any government authority.

(c) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , the

term-loan has been applied for the purpose for which the term loan was obtained'

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall

examinalion of the books of the company, we report that no funds have been raised

on short term basis have been used for long term purposes during the year by the

company. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us' the

company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly' the

provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order are not applicable'



(f)lnouropinionandaccordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous,the
Companydoesnothaveanysubsidiary,associateorjointventure.Accordingly,the
provisions of clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable'

(x)(a)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgivenbythemanagement,the
Companyhasnotraised,n,*on",wayofinitialpunticoffer/furtherpublic
offer/debtinstrumentsandtermloanshence,reportingunderclause(x)(a)of
the Order is not applicable to the Company'

(b)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgivenbythemanagement,the
Companyhasnot*,a",nypreferentialallotmentorprivateplacementof
shares /fully or partially o|. optionurry convertible debentures during the year

underauditandhence,therequirementtoreportonclause3(x)(b)oftheorder
is not aPPlicable to the ComPanY'

(xi)(a)Basedupontheauditproceduresperformedforthepurposeofreportingthe
trueandfairviewofthefinancialstatementsandaccordingtothe
information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud

bytheCompanyorontnecompanybytnetfficersandemployeesofthe
Company has been notrced or repofted during the year'

(b)Duringtheyear'-l?.'"po"undersub-section(12)ofsectionl43ofthe
CompaniesAct,20l3nasn""nfiledbycostauditor,.:":"]1'11-auditororbyus
in Form ADT - + " 

p'"ttrrbed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and

nuOiio"l nutes' 2014 with the Central Government

(c)Asrepresentedbythemanagement,therearenowhistleblower

""t;;*-received 
by the Company during the year'

(xii)lnouropinion,theCompanyisnotanidhiCompany'Therefore,theprovisionsof
clause 3(xii)(a) to(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company'

(xiii)Accordingtotheinformationandexplanationsgivenbythemanagement,
transactions with the related farties are in comptiance with section 177 and i38 of

CompaniesAct,20l3whereapplicableandthedetailshavebeendisclosedinthe
notestothefinancialstatements,asrequiredbytheapplicableaccountingstandards.

(xiv)(a)lnouropinionandacccirdingtotheinformationandexplanationsgiventous'the
Companyhasaninternalauditsystemcommensuratewiththesizeandnatureofits
business'

(b)WehaveconsideredtheinternalauditreporlsoftheCompanyissuedtilldate,for
the period under audit'



(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or

persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of Companies Act,

2013 are not aPPlicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given by the management' the

provisions of section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934 are not

applicable to the company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause

(xvi)(a) to (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company'

(xvii) The company has incurred cash losses in the current year of Rs'7'92 lacs as

conrpared to 17.24lacs in immediately preceding financial year.

(xvlii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year'

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in the financial statements, ageing

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, oUr

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on

the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilitles

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of

one year from the balance sheet date'

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to

the company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of

the Order is not applicable to the company'

l'

Padner
MembershiP Number: 129179
Place: Kolkata
Date: May 29,2025
UDIN: 251291798M1WTF4074

For N.H. Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
lCAl Firm Registration



Annexure2tothelndependentAuditor,sreportofevendateonthelndASfinancial
statements of Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited

ReportonthelnternalFinancialGontrolsunderClause(i)ofSub.section3ofSection
;;i;i til companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to lnd As financial statements

of Rituraj shares Br"k.rg private.qryiiea ("the company") as of March 31,2025 in

conjunction wi*, our-a,iili'li tr.," tno ns inun.ilr statements of tn" company for the year

ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Gontrols

The company's Management is responsible for establishinq and maintaining internal

financial controls based on the internal 
"oniioi 

or"r financial ,"p"o.ting criteria established by

the Company considering the es.sentiai'''Jomponentt-of iniernal control stated in the

Guidance Note on A;;ii & tnternat rinunc[i'clntrols over Financial Reporting issued by

the tnstitute of Chartered Accountantt oijnoiu l;icnr"1, These responsibilities include the

design, implementation and maintenance or ao"quat" internal financial controls that were

operating etfectivety ioi 
""rrring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business' including

adherence to the company,s poticies, d;";i;;;roi"g "f 
its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy ,"-o ;ryietene_ss of the accounting records'

and the timety pr"pJution oi reliable financial information' as required under the Companies

Act, 2013.

Auditor's ResPonsibilitY

our responsibility is to express an.opinion on the company's internal financial controls with

reference to these ino AS tnuncial statements based on our audit' We conducted our audit

in accordance with the Guidance Note "; il;it;i 
rnternar Financiar contrors over Financiar

Reporting (the "GuiiJn"" N"tJl and the 3t'"no"ot on Auditing' as specified under section

143(10) of the n"t,"io'if..," "*t"nt 
rppfi.u[f" io an-auOit of int6rnal financial controls' both

issued by lcAI. Til; standards and th" Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirement. ,nO p[n ,rO p"rfo6 the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

adequate internal tin"n.iui controls wilr ieieience to these lnd AS financial statements was

established and maintained and if such ";;;;[;p"iated 
effectively in all material respects'

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internat financiat controts with referen;'i; th;;" lnd AS financial statements and their

operating ettectiveriess. bur auoit or in]uinui financial controls with reference to lnd AS

financial statements included obtaining "."r"o"rrirnJing 
or internal flnancial controls with

reference to lrese InJ nS tnanciaf ,tui"irlni=' a"sessin! the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing ,ri -rrirrting the d;;,g.;.d operati-ng-effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk. The pro."oui", selecied defend on the auditor's judgement'

incruding tne assessment of the risks oi materiat misstatement of the financial'dtatemg"tts'

whether due to fraud or error'

we berieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufiicient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the #;;;;ini"'n'l financial controis with reference to

these lnd AS financial statements'



Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to these lnd AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
report ng and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with
reference to lnd AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
per1ain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with Reference to lnd AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to lnd AS
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to lnd AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to lnd AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to lnd AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2025,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criterib established by the Company
considerrng the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the lCAl.

For N.H. Agrawal & Associates

Membership Number: 129179
Place: Kolkata
Date: May 29,2025
UDI N : 251291798M |WTF4074

Chartered Ac-countants
lCAl Firm Registration 1

Nitin Hukumc
Partner

0327511E

I



TTITURA' SHARES BROKING P\/T. LTD

cttrt: u51109wB2000PTC092403
148 Camac Street, Nandi Commercial, Kolkata-700017

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2025

(All amount in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Pa rticulars Notes
As at 31st March

202s
As at 31st March

2024
ASSETS

Assets

) Property,Plant and Equipment
Financial assets
(i) lnvestments
(ii) Trade Receivables
(iii) Other financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

) Other non-current assets
Non -Current Assets

lCurrent Assets

I(a) rinanciat assets

I (i) lnvestments

I liit Trade receivables

| (iiit Cash and cash equivalents

I (ir) Bank Balances other than (iii) above

| (u) loant
I (rit Other Financial Assets

l(b) Current tax Assets (net)

l1c1 oth"r current assets

lTotal current Assets

IToTAL ASSETS

It. EqUTY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Other curent liabilities

Total Current Liablities

TOTAL EQUIW AND TIABILITIES

3

4.1
A)
4.3

5

6

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4
7rr

7.6

8

9

10

11

T2

0,08

24.57

173.31

0.04
41.00

0.08

24.60

173.31

0.07

0.82
40.00

239.00 238.88

66.2L

25.42

7.56
8.9s

49.08
1.19

0.03
7.47

63.07

15. r1
17.35

8.95

53.07

0.63
0.s0
1,.47

159.91 161. r.s

398.91 400.03

35.20
358.82

36.20

363.55
39s.02 399.76

3.89 0.27
3.89 n17

398.91 400.03

v

The accompanying notes 1 to 30, forms an integral part ofthese Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For N H Agrawal & Associates

'r: O3275t7E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RITURA' SHARES BROKING PVT tTD

Hlhrralshares Broklng pvt. Ltd.

Membership Number:
uDtN: ?Fl2ol111
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 29-05-2025

129179

Rituraf shares Broking pvt. Ltd.

il--{-,r-}.o. t t^_r *^_,
blrector

Leela Murjani
Director
(DrN :024i.3222)

>,,-Z-e r>--4,'
Director

Mahesh Gupta

Director
(DlN : 01606647)Dr.4fN1'F

Chartered Accounta



RITURAJ SHARES BROKING PVT. LTD

CIN: U5 1109W82000pTC092403
148 Camac Street, Nandi Commercial, Kolkata-700017

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE year Ended 31st March 2025

(All amount in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes
Year ended

31st March 2025
Year ended

31st March 2024

1,. *"runr" from operations
Itt. ott 

"r. 
income

Itrr.rotrt tncome (t + u)

l,r. r,r"n.",
I employee benefi ts expense

loth",. 
"rp"nres

lTotrl "rp"nr",
I

lv. 
nront before tax (ilr - rV)

lVl. 
Tax expense:

I (1) Current tax
(2) Tax Expenses of Prior Years
(3) Deferred tax

Vll. Profit for the period (V-Vl)

Vlll. Other comprehensive income
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
a)Remeasurement ofthe gain/(loss) of defined benefit
obligations
b) Tax lmpact on above

(ii) ltems that will be reclassified to statement of profit and loss

a) Changes in fair valuation of bonds/ debt instruments
b) Tax lmpact on above

Other comprehensive income (net of tax )

lX. Total comprehensive income for the year

X. Earning per equity share:
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

13

L4

15

16

LI

20

o.2t
3.32

0.60

8.76
3.53 9.36

2.14

9.30

2.38

24.22
Lt.44 25.50

(7.9L 117.24

0.39 (0.31)

0.39 (0.31)
(8.301 (16.e31

3.92
{o.361

29.94
(3.17)

3.s6 26.77

14.74]l 9.84

(22.93

122.93

(46.77)
(46.77

}

The accompanying notes 1 to 30, forms an integral part of these Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

ln terms of our seperate report of even date

For N H Agrawal & Associates' For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RITURAJ SHARES BROKING PVT LTDChartered Accountants

Partner

Membership Number:
UDIN: 2tlt1l?q
Place: Kolkata
Dated: 29-05-2025

t29779

. RituraJShares Broking Pvt. Ltd. Rtture;

'>*-e -

MaheshGupta Dlrectorr..laMurjani

Director Director

$hares Broklng Pvt, Ltd.

il'-L*{* {r-4r..-" ;

MI_N't P r10V1

(DlN :01505647) (DlN :024L3222)

Firm's Registratiqn Nu

Nitih Hukumchand Agrawal



Pafticulars
Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year ended 31.03.2024

l.

1

CASH FLOWS

From Operating Activities
(a) Net Profit / (Loss) before tax from Operating Activities

Adjustments:

I nterest I ncome

Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes of lnvestment

Other lncome

Operating Profit/ lLoss) before wor0ng cadta)

changes

(b) Working Capital changes:

Decrease/ (lncrease) in trade receivables

Decrease/ (lncrease) in loans

lncrease/ ( Decrease) in other current assets

lncrease/ ( Decrease) in Borrowings

lncrease/ ( Decrease) in other current liabilities

lncrease/ ( Decrease) in financial assets

Cash generated from Operating Activities

lncome Taxes Paid

Net Cash from Operating Activiites

From lnvesting Activities

Purchase/(sale) of investment (net)

I nterest received

Other income

lnvestment in Fixed Deposit

Proceeds from Fixed Deposits

Net Cash from lnvesting Activiites

From Financing Activities

Repayment of borrowings

Total of (1)

Total of (2)

il. Net (decrease)/increase in Cash and Bank

Balances (l-ll)

Total of (3)

Total Cash flows (1+2+3)

ilt.

Add: Cash and Bank Balances at the beginning

of the period

Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the
period ( Refer Note 7.3)

(7.e1)

(0.s6)

(0.04)

(a.6a\

/a.s1/

(e.31)

3.99

3.62
(0.4e) (2.19,

(10.rol

0.47

_________gql

(0.12)

0.s6

o.44

---------1919)17.35

7.56

(77.74\

(0.se)

(1.21)

(.ea\

/1e.04)

(1s.e1)

29.40
(0.63)

0.20

13.06

(rrq

(0.01)

(s.ee)

6.97

1.11

(18.9s)

10.00

___________pi4

(11.76)

----------l11rq

---------l1gi4
3s.97

1735

RITURAJ SHARES BROKING PVT. LTD

CIN: U51109W82000PTC092403

148 Camac Street, Nandi Commercial, Kolkata-700017

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2025

(All amount in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Note:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "lndirect Method" as set out in the lndian Accounting Standard (lnd AS'7) -Statement

of Cash Flow.

The accompanying notes 1 to 30, forms an integral part of these Financial Statements

For N H Agrawal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 0327511E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

t,

RITURAJ SHARES BROKING PW tTD

Rltumlshares Sroking Pvt. Ltd.

>?..-zc_E- >-.e "

ilirector
Mahesh Gupta
Director
(DlN :01606647)

Rlhrql Shares Broklng Pvt.l-td.
I
d.-cr.f.. ya^ \

1*
Leera Murjani ' Director
Director
(DlN :02413222)

Membership Number: 129179

uDtN: 2S!2t l?.lBl.{f hJTFgolul
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 29-05-2025

ltinEukumchand Agrawal

Pdrtner
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Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN : U51 1 09WB2000PTC0 92403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

General lnformation and Statement of Compliance with IND AS

1. General lnformation:
a) Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in

lndia. lt is a Share Broking Company based in Kolkata with over 23 years of experience. lt is engaged

, in business of Share Trading all over lndia.

b) Statement of Compliance
The financial Statements have been prepared in accordance^with the lndian Accounting Standards
("lND AS") as prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of Companies Act,
z}rc (" the Act"), read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from
time to time.

Basis of Preparation:

a) The financial statements have been prepared on going concern under historical cost basis except
for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

b) Functional and Presentation Gurrency
The Financial Statements have been prepared in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the
Company's functional currency. The Financial Statements have been rounded off to nearest lacs,
up to two places of decimals, unless othenrvise stated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements:

The preparation of the financial statement management to make estimates, judgements and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets arid liabilities, income and expenses and
disclosures relating to the contingent assets and liabilities on the date of the Financial Statement.
Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results could be differed from these estimates. -€

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: Key assumptions:

a) Useful lives of depreciable and amortisable.assets: -
The company reviews the estimated useful lives of depreciable or amortisable assets at each
reporting period, based its expected utility of those assets. Uncertainties in these estimates
relate to technical and economic obsolesce that may change the utility of certain items of
property, plant and equipment.
to make the sale, obsolescence considering past trend. lnventories are written done to NRV
when such NRV is lower than their cost.

2.1

2.2



b)

Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
GIN: U51 I 09WB2000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Defined benefit Obligation: -
The present value of defined benefit obligation which includes gratuity is determined using
actuarial valuations using projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include

the determination of the discount rate, future salary increase and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in the assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Recognition and measurement of provisions, liabilities and contingencies: -
Provision and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will
be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events that can be reasonably
be estimated. The timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances which may be subjectto change.
Contingencies in the normal course may be arise from litigation and other claims. Potential
liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystalizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes to
accounts but are not recognized.

lncome Taxes: -
The Company's tax jurisdiction is lndia. Significant judgements are involved in determining
the provisions for income taxes including amount expected to be paid or recovered for
uncertain tax positions.

Fair value measurements: -

When the fair value of the financial.assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance
Sheet cannot be measured based on the quoted prices in the active markets, their fair value
is measured using the valuation techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which
involve various judgements and assumptions.

Significant Accounting Policies: -€
a) Overall Considerations: -

The financieil statement have been prepared using significant accounting policies and
measurement basis as summarised below: -

b) Gurrent versus non-current classitlcation: -
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet on current and non-current
classification: -

a) The asseUliability is expected to be realised/settled in normal operating cycle;
b) The asset is intended for sale or consumption;
c) The asseUliability is held primarily for purpose of trading;
d) The asset/liability is expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after reporting

c)

d)

e)

2.3

period;



Rituraj Shares Broking private Limited
GIN: U51 1 09W82000PTG092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 3i March 2025

The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after reporting date;
ln the case of a liability, there is no unconditional right to defer setlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after reporting date; .

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

c) Cash Flow Statement: -
Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of the transactions of no-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and any items of income or'expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities

d) Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible Assets: -

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition: -
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated as cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalised until the property,
plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the managenient.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and usefirl lives): -
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on a pro-rata basis over their
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives of the assets
prescribed under the Schedule ll of the Act, are as follows:

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and,
if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate on a prospective basis. Subsequent expenditures r.elatiqg;lo property,
plant and equipment are capitalised only when it is probable that the future econcimic benefits
associated with these will flow and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and
maintenance tosts are recognised in net profit in Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.
The costs and related accu.mulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or upon retirement of the asset and resultant gains or losses recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition: -
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the

e)

Statement of Profit and Loss, when the asset is de-recognised.
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Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN: U5{ { 09WB2000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Taxation
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss comprises the sum of the current

tax and deferred tax except the ones recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome or directly
in Equity.

Gurrent lncome Tax
Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
for the reporting period. Cur:rent lncome Tax relating to items recognised outside the
profit or loss is recognised either in Comprehensive lncome or in Equity.

Current lncome Tax for the current and prior periods is recognised at the amounts

expected to be paid to or received from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and the

tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

The Company off sets current tax assets and liabilities, where it has legally

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle

on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on the tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences between the

carrying amount of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the

corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e. tax base).

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the exlent possible that the taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any reduction is reversed to the extent possible

that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax relating to the items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss

is recognised either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to set off the non-current

assets against non-current liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by

the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its non-current assets

and liabilities on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax
Minimum Alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future

economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future tax liability, is considered as an

asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax.

MAT Credits are in form of unused tax credits that are carried fonryard by the Company

for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entitlement has been grouped

with deferred tax assets (net). Correspondingly, MAT Credit Entitlement has been

grouped with deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii)

iii)
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Rituraj Shares Broking Frivate Limited
CIN: U51 1 09WB2000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Provisions, contingent Iiabilities and contingent assets: -

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result

of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation. The expense relating to provision is presented in the statement of profit and

loss. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from the past events whose existence

will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events

not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that is not recognised because

it is probable that an outflow resources will be required to settle the obligation or it cannot be

measured with sufficient reliability. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but

discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of the

income is virtually certain, related asset is recognised.

Gommitments
Commitments include the amount of the purchase order (net of advances) issued to the

parties for completion of assets. Commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized only when it is accrued.

lnterest lncome
lnterest lncome is recorded using Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) for all the instruments

measured at amortised cost. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a EForter period,

where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial assets or to the amortised

cost of financial liability.

Dividend !ncome
Dividend lncome is recognised when right to receive is established. ,

Employee Benefit Expenses
1. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits are recognized as an expense

amount in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which
at the undiscounted
related services are

h)

rendered.



Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
GIN: U51 1 09W82000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

i) Earnings Per Share: -
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the period

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net Profit or Loss for the year

attributable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share outstanding if

any are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Financial lnstruments: -
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another equity.

Financial Assets
lnitial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets

not recorded at fair value through value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade Receivables are initially measured

at the transaction price. Regular way of purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted

for at trade date.

Subsequent Measurement
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three

categories
o Amortised Cost
o Fair Value through Other Comprehensive lncome (FWOCI)
. Fair Value through Profit or loss (FWPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business modelfor managing financial assets.

Measured at Amortised Cost: A financial asset is measured at amortiied cES if it is held
objectiveisachievedbybothcollectingcontractr.ialcashflows

and the contrectual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (ElR) method.

Measured at FVTOCI: A financial asset is measured at FWOCI if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.



Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN: U51 I 09W82000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial assets included within the FWOCI category are measured initially as well at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value measurement is recognised in Other Comprehensive
lncome.

Measured at FWPL: A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories
are measured at FWPL.
Financial assets included within the FWPL category are measured at fair value with all

changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies

for de-recognition under lnd AS 109.

lmpairment of financial assets
ln accordance with lnd AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted average of the difference between all the contractual cash flows that are
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to
consider:

-All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the
expected life of the assets

-Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractualterms.

Trade Receivabtes
ln respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of lnd AS 109,

which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default ev6nts over the
expected life of a financial asset. 12 month ECL area portion of the lifetime ECL which result
from default events that are possible with 12 months from the reporting date, ECL are
measured in d manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined
by a range of outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable
information available as a ,result of past events, current conditions and forecast of future
economic conditions.

FinancialAssets
ln respect of other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial
assets has increased significantly since initial recognition. lf the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial reiognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equat to 12- month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses.
While making the assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring

Company compares theover the expected life of the financial asset. To make the



k)

Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN: U51 1 09W82000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort that is

indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes

that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if
the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Financial Liabilities
Initia! Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities are at initially recognised at fair value plus any transaction cost that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities except financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss which are initially measured at fair value.

Subsequent Measurement:
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in following
categories: -
o Fair Value through Profit or loss (FWPL)
o Amortised Cost

Measured at FWPL: A financial tiaOitity is classified as at FWPL. lt is classified as held for
trading or it is derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities as

at FWPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense
is recognised in profit and loss.

Measured at Amortised: Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Derecoqnition
The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) only when the
obligation specified in the contract discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetti ng fi nancial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously
-€

lmpairment of non- financial assets: -

At the end ofpach reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible

and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss. lf any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset

is estimated in order to deterrfrine the extent.of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates

the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are

also allocated to the individual cash-generating units, or othenruise they are allocated to the

smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.
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Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN: U51 1 09W82000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. ln assessing

value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-

tax discount that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

lf the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated less that its

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit

and Loss, unless the relevant asset at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss

is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount , but so that the

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss has been recognised immediately in the Statemeni of
Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued Amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

l) Fair Value: -
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. ln estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company

takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would

take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the

measurement date. Fair value for measurement and or disclosure purposes in the
financial statements is determined on such basis

ln addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized

into Level 1, 2, ot 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements are observable and the significance 'of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;
. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

assets or

that are

Event after reporting date: -
Where the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions

that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events adjusted within

the financial statements. Othenrvise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size

or nature are only disclosed



Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
GIN: U51 I 09W82000PTC092403

Material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

n) Segment Reporting: -

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is

responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments of the ComPanY.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting

provided to the chief operating decision maker. As per requirement of lnd AS 108

'segment Reporting" no disclosures are required to be made since the Company's

activities consists of a single business segment.

o) Foreign currency translation: -

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange

rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the

settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies at year and exchange rates are recognised in profit and loss.
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RITURAJ SHARES BROKING PVT. tTD
CIN : U51109W82000PTC092403

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(All amount in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated)
4,1 lnvestments

Particulars
Amortised

Cost

Fair Value

Others
TotalThrough Profit

and Loss
lncome

\s at 31 March 2025

lnvestment in Equity lnstument
Equity Instruments-Quoted
lnvestment an Bond

22.03 22.03

TOTAL 22.03 2.54 24.57

Particulars
Amortised

Cost

Fair Value

Others
TotalThrough Profit

and Loss

Through Other

lncome

As at 31 March 2024
lnvestment in Equity lnstument
Equity Instruments-Quoted
lnvestment in Bond

22.03

2.54

0.04 004

TOTAL 22.03 2.54 0.04 24.60

4.1. lnvestments No of Shares Amount

Particulars Face Valu€ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

lnvestments in Equity lnstruments (Quoted - fully paid up)
carried at Fair value through OCI

Mahindra Gesco Ltd. ( Mahindra Lifespace Developers Ltd.) 10.00 6.00 6.00 0.04

Agtgregate amount of Quoted investments 5.00 5.00 0.04

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

31 March 202: 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

lnvestments in Bonds

RHFL (9.1s%) 400 400 2.54 2.54

Aggregate amount of lnvestment in Bonds 400 400 2.54 2.54

I

Particulars Face Value 31 March 202: 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

lnvestments in Equity lnsruments (unquoted - fully paid up)

Measured at Cost

Rituraj Shares & Securities Ltd. r.0.00 2360: 23505 22.O3 22.O3

Ariregate amount of unquoted investments 23,605 23,60s 22.03 22.03



,JRITURA' SHARES BROKING PVT. LTD

CIN: U51X09W82000PTC092403
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(A amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured, Consldered good $
L73.37 1.73.37

TOTAL 173.3t 173.11

Trade Receivable as on 31st March,2025

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payments

Not yel

due

Less than 6

months
6 months - 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undlsputed Trade Receivable

(l) considered Good L71.37 173 l1

i) Doubtfu

Disputed Trade Receivable

i) Consldered Good

1ii) Doubtfu
Total 773,31 173.31

Trade Receivable as on 3Lst March,2024

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payments

Not yet

due

Less than 6
months

6 months - 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

years
Total

Undisputed Trade Recelvable

(i) Considered cood 173.31

(ll)D(
lrcn ,iFd i rade xeaetvante

{i) considered Good

iir) Doubtfui

Total L73.31 173.37

4.3. Other Financial Assets (non - current)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Security Deposit o.a7

TOTAT o.o7

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deferred Tax tiabilities
Timing difference in property,plant and equipment

FalrVa\ue oi Mutual fund investments

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for Gratulty
falr Value of Equlty lnstruments

(0.L2' to,rzl

(0.1 10.12

0.70 a.70

a.'70 a.70

Deferred tax Assets ( net) 0.82

Particulars 31 March 2025 31. March 2024

lJnseaured, considered good

i) Capltal Advances

lilDeposlt wlth sMc

40.00

1.00

40.00

TOTAL 41.00 40.o0

7-1. lnvestments

Particulars Amortised Cost

Fair Value

OthersThrough Profit and

Loss

ThrouSh Other
Comprehensive

at 31 March 2025

nvestment in Equity lnstument

:qu[y nstruments Quoted

:quity lnstruments Unquoted

0.59

65.62 65,62

0,59

TOTAL 0.s9 65.2r



RITURAJ SHARES BROl(ING PVT. LTD

CIN: U51109WB2000PTCo92403

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025

Pafticulars Amortised Cost

Fair Value

OthersThrough Profit and

!oss

Through Other
Comprehensive

31 Mar.h 2024

nvestment in Equity lnstument

iquity lnstruments Quoted

iqulty lnstruments-Unquoted

nvestments in Mutual Fund 0.5s

62.52 52.5 2

0.55

TOTAT 0.55 62.52 63.07

7.L. lnvestments

Particulars Face Value
No. of Shares Amount

31 March 2025 3tMarch2024 31 March 2025 31. March 2024

Investments in Equity lnstruments (Quoted -

fully paid up)

Carried at Fair Value Through OCI

Abate As lndustries Ltd

ANSAL BUILDWELT LTD,

ASLT C.MEHTA FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD,

ATV PROJECTS INDIA LTD,

Emkay Global Financial Seryices Ltd.

ENBEE TRADE & F]NANCE LiD.

Greencrest Flnancial Services Ltd

G,5,AUTO INTERNATIONAL LTD,

Hubtown Ltd

tndiabulls Real Estate Limited

INDOWIND ENERGY tTD.

INFOSYS LTD,

(AtYAN] STEELS LTD,

KaVa Ltd

Kesar Terminals & nfrastructure Ltd

LIBERTY SHOES LTD,

MEDICAMEN BIOTECH LTD.

MEDICAMEN Organics LTD.

MEP lnfrastructure Deve opers Ltd

Network 18

NSE

One Mobikwik Systems Ltd

PNB Housing Finance Ltd

Prakash Woollen & synthetic Mills Ltd

RAMKR]SHNA FORG NGS LTD,

Rattanlndia Power Limited

5al Automotive Ltd

satchmo Hold ngs Ltd

Selan Exploration Techno ogv Ltd

South Bank

Sri Adhikari Brothers Television Network Limited

5umeet lndustries Ltd

sUVEN LIFE SCIENCES LTD.

SI]7I ON FNFRGY LTD.

TATA CONSULTANCY SERVICES tTD,

TCM LTD

UNITECH tTD

VENUS REMEDIES LTD.

Viceroy Hotels Ltd

Vascon Engineers Ltd

Vedanta Limited

Vodafone ldea Ltd

WeLspun Enterprises Ltd

Zee Media Corporation Ltd

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

5

10

5

10

10

L

10

5

7

?

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

1

1

1.0

7

10

10

10

2

t2t8

3000

1400

35

1300

100

100

2000

750

55

4000

483

294

1000

300

538

1335

10000

10000

1000

10000

10

12500

4000
/

1000

10L4
34

5000
2ta

20000
1000

3000

3,2A4
90

3,000

1,240

5,000

35

3,250

100

200

250

1,000

2,000
900

326

16

10,000
50

1,000

10,000

1,000

12,spo
100

6,000
7

1,000

2,000
3,001

34

1,000

3,000

1.40

6.37

0.10

0.01

o.oz

L.5l

a.47

!.4L
2.4L

0.27

0.87

0.01

0.13

17.O4

0.91

0.13

10.32

0.93

0.32

a.L4

2.3t

0.06

0.60

2.27

0.25
0.36

l04
0.o4

1.85

1.36

4.64

0.13

1.9 7

3.47

0.16

0.05

0.01

0.02
3.77

3.00

).L4
3.10

1.43

1.25

006

0.10

9.47

o.23

4.50

0.04

0.31
0.10

2.42

0.55

4.22
9.77

3.05

031

Aggregate amount of Quoted investments 102,947 85,406 65.52

I.

Particulars
No of Units Amount

31 March 202! 1 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

lnvestments in Quoted Mutual Fund

Carried at falr Value Through OCI

ICICI Pru Fund Growth 451 851 0.59 0.5s

Aggregate amount of lnvestment in Mutual Fund 851 851 0.59 0.55



RITURAJ SHARES BROKING PW. tTD

CIN: U511O9WB20O0PTC092rUr3

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025

Note: The loan is repayable-on demand . None of the loan was given to KMPs/ Promoters/ Directors and Related Parties

(Ali amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unse.ured, consldered good 25,42 16.11

TOTAL 25.42 15,11

Trade Receivales as on 3lst March, 2025

Particulars

Outstandins for followins Deriods from the due date of pavments

Not yet

due

Less than 6
months

6 months - 1
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

rted Trade Recervable

(l) Considered Good 14.5L 10.91 25.42

{ l) Doubtful

Disputed Trade Recelvable
(i) consldered Good

{ii) Doubtful

Total 14.51 10.91

Trade Receivales as on 31st March, 2024

Particulars

Outstandine for followins Deriods from the due date of pavments

Not yel

due

Less than 6
months

5 months - 1
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3

years
Total

Undisputed Trade Receivable

{i) Considered Good 16.71 16.1 1

(ii) Doubtfui
I Trade Recelvable

(i) consldered Good
(iil Doubtfu
Total 16.11

7.3. Cash and cash

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

i) Balances with banks

in current accounts

ii) cash on hand

0.54 3.36

TOTAL 7.56 !1.35 v

7.4. Bank Balances other than (iii) above

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deposit with origlnal maturlty for more than three months but less than twelve months 8.95 8.95

TOTAL 8,95 8.9s

Particulars 31 March 2025 3lMarch2024

Unsecured, considered good

Loans 49,08 5 3.07

TOTAI 49.08 53.07

Financial

Particulars 31 March 2025 3L March 2024

A.crued lnterest on Fixed Deposit 1.19 0.63

TOTAL 1.19 0.63

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Current Tax Assets ( net) 0.03 0.50

TOTAL 0.03 0.50

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Mrnimum Aiternate Tax Credit entitlement 1,47 r.47

TOTAL L.47 t.47



Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

AUE88!Z!Q.
;o,ooo EquitV Shares (Previous Years: 50,000) of Rs.100 each 50.00 50.00

TOTAL s0.00 s0.00

36,200 Equitv Shares { Previous Year:35,200) of Rs 100 each 36.20 36.20

TOTAL 36.20 36.20

RITURAJ SHARES EROKING PVT. I.TD

CIN: U51109wB2000PTC092rr03
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025

(A) Movement in equity share €apital:

(B) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as on March 31,2025 and as on March 31,2024

(A I amount ln Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(C) Shares held by promoters

As on March 31,2025

As on March 31,2024

lD) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

the renrain ng assets of the Company after diiribut on of all preferentral allotments in proportion io the no. of equitv shares held bv them

Particulars
As at 31st Marchl As at 31st Marcl

2o2sl 2o2t

Reserves and surplus
(i) Securlties Premlum ReseTve

(ll) Retained Earnings

(llll Equitv rnstruments throush other comprehensive

408.57

144.12,

112.72

(3s.82)
IC 15)

rOTAL 35L.13 363.s9

Particulars
As at 31st Marchl as at 3lst Marrt

202s )i) a

Opening balance

Movement during the year

408.57 408.51

closing balance AnR (7 404.57

Particulars
As at 3lst Marct

2025

As at 31st Marcl
ao7 I

lpening balance
)rofit for the year

(3s.B2l

18.30'

{18.92
{15.90

Closing balance {M.12 (3s.82

v

-4*

Particulars Number of shares Amount

Balance at March 31, 2023

Movement during the year

Balance at March 31,2024
Movement durins the vear

36,200.0c

36,200.00 36.20

Balance at March 31,2025 36,200.0( 36.2(

Name of the shareholder
as at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No, of Shares % holdins No. of Shares % holding

.ee & Nee Softwar€s ( Expoils) Lid. 3620t 10i 36,200.00 100.00

Promoter Name
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 % change dudng

the YearNo. of shares % holding No- of Shares % holdins

l-ee & Nee Sofiwares ( Exports) ttd.

ArpiLr Gupta

3610(

10(

99.1i

o)t
15,100.00

100.00

99 72

0.28

Promoter Name
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023 % Change during

the YearNo, of Shares % holding No. of Shares % holdins

ee & Nee softwares ( trports) Ltd.

Vpiia Gupta

3610{

10(

99.7:

0.21

36,100.00

100.00

99 t)
0.?8



itITURAJ SHARES BROKING PVT. LID
cl N: U51109W82000PTC092403

Notes to the finan0ial statements for the vear ended 31 march 2025

Notes

Retained Earnings

This rcscrva represents the .umulative profits of the company. This rescrve can be utlllsed ln accordance with the Companies Act 2013.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

Tir s represents the cumulativc Sains and losscs on arlslng on the revaluation of thc equlty instruments measured at fair va ue through other comprehensive income,
ncl of tax under an irrcvocable optlon,nct of amou nt reclasslfled to reatlned carn nBs when such assets are dlsposecj off i{ any

(All amo!nt in Rupees Lacs, un ess othcrwlse 5tatcal)

Particulars As at 3lst March

2025
As at 31st March

2024
Unsecured Loans

Loans from related parties

lnter corporate deposits from related paa.y 3.80

TOTAL 3.80

*ri lntercorporate Deposit from related parties are taken from holding Company Lee & Nee Softwares {Exports) Ltd.(Wholly Owned)

Party represents Leela Murjani

Type of Loanee

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Amount of loans and
advance in nature of loan

outstanding

Percentage of th€

total loans and

Advances in the
nature of loans

Amount of loans and

advance in nature of
loan outstanding

Percentage of the
total loans and

Advances in the
nature of Ioans

Directors flD V/01
KMPS

Re ated Parties #Drv/01

13. Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at 3lst March

2025

As at 31st March

i) Statutory Liabilities
i ) Other outstandlng Liability

0.05

0.04
0.05

0.22

IOTAL 0.09 0.21

Note:

(l) The Ministry of micro, 5mall and medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 25 August 2008 which recommends that the micro and
sma enterprlsesshouldmentionintheircorrespondencewithitscustomerstheEntrepreneursMemorandumNumberasallocatedafterfilingofthe
Memorandum in ac.ordan.e with the 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 ('the Act'). Accordingly, the disclosure in respeci of the
amounts payallle to such enterprises has been made in the financial statements based on the information received and available with the Company.

{ii) Based on the information / documents available with the company, no interest provisions / payments has to be made by the Company to micro
enterprisesandsmallenterprises creditorsandthus,norelateddisclosuresasrequiredunderSection22oftheMicro,smallandMedjumEnterprjses
De\e\asmeni Nc\, 2006 a(e made $ \hese arceu\ts.

loan



iIITURAJ SHARES BROKING PVT- LTD

Cl N: U51109W82000PTC092403

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025

Notes

Retained Earnings

This reserve rcpresent5 the cumulErjve profits of the company. Th s reserve can be utilised in accordance with the Companles Act 2013.

Equity instruments throuth other comprehensive income
Tilis represents the cumu ative gains and losses on arising on the revaluation of the equity lnstrumcnts measurcd at fair value thro!gh other comprehenslve incor|e
net of tax under an irrevocablc option,net o{ amount reclassificd to reatined earnings when s!ch assets arc disposed off if any

Particulars As at 31st March

202s
As at 31st March

2024
Lrnsecured Loans

Loans from related parties

lnter corporate deposits from reiated paary 3.80

TOTAL 3.80
"" Loan irom related party represents loan taken from Director Lee a Murjan
*++ lntercorporate Deposit from related parties are taken from holding Company Lee & Nee Softwares (Exports) Ltd.(Wholly Owned)

Type of Loanee

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

Amount of loans and

advanc€ in nature of loan

outstanding

Peraenta8e of the
total loans and

Advances in the
naturc of loans

Amount of loans and

advance in nature of
loan outstanding

Percentage of the
total loans and

Advances in the
nature of loans

)irectoa5 #Drv/o!
(MPS

lc ated Panies #Drv/01

13. Other Current

Particulars As at 31st March

202s
As at 31st March

)o) L
i) statutory Liabilities

ii) Other outstanding Liability
0.0s

0.04
0.05

0.22

TOTAL 0.09 0.21

Note:

1l) The Ministry of micro, small and medium enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2oo8 which recommends that the micro and
sma enterprlsesshouldmentioninthelrcorrespondencewithitscustomerstheEntrepreneursMemorandumNumberasallocatedafterfilingofthe
M-omorandum in accordan.P with the 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2005 {'the Act'). According y, the disclosure in respect of the
amounts payable to such enterprises has been made in the financia statements based on the information received and available with the Company,

(ii) Based on the information / documents available with the company, no interest provlsions / payments has to be made by the Company to micro
epterprisesandsma enterprises creditorsandthus,noreateddisclosuresasrequiredunderSection22oftheMicro,SmallandMediumEnterprises
Development Act, 2006 are made in these accounts.

(A I amount ln Rupees Lacs, !nlesr otherwise stated)

v

n'tii
s



nriunru sHAREs BRoKTNG Pvr. LTD

CIN : U51109WB2O0OPTCO924O3

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

13. Revenue from operations

14. Other income

Employee benefits

(All amount in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2025

Year ended

31 March 2024

Brokerage lncome 0.21 0.60

TOTAI. 0.21 0.60

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2025

Year ended

31 March 2024

lnterest on TDS Refund

lnterest Received on Loan

lnterest on FD

lnterest on Bond

Net gain on fair value changes on

Speculation Profit

Commission lncome

Dividend lncome

Misc lncome

Training fees

mutual fund

0.02

0.56

0.04

2.47

0.03

0.20

0.02

o.72

0.59

1.21

o.24

0.08

0.12

0.06

5.72

TOTAL 3.32 8.76

15.

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2025

Year ended

31 March 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus

Staff welfare expenses

2.02

0.12

2.18

0,20

TOTAL 2.L4 2.38

16. Other

Meeting Exp./Director sitting fees

Fees (Refer 't6a)

0.01

3.20

0.15

o_17

o.09

o:43

0.02

o.or

2.40

0.03

o.oz

0.09

0.28

1.69

0.06

0.01

3.20

o.12

0.01

0.07

0.21

0.03

0.42

0.76

0.02

0.83

0.15

2.40

0.05

0.60

12.E2

0.11

0.10

0.14

2.',t1

0.06

Particulars
Year endec

31 March 202!

Year endec

31 March 2024

ffi
1:lf"ii-r?dl;',11"'TOTAL 9.30 24.22

Nk#d



RITURA,I SHARES BROKING PVT. LTD

CIN: U51109WB20OOPTCO924O3

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

auditor

17.Tax expenses

(All amount in Rs. Lacs unless otherwise stated)

16. a to

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2025

Year ended

31 March 2024

(a) To statutory auditors
-Statutorv audit fee 0.06 0.06

TOTAL 0.06 0.05

Particulars
Year ended

31 March 2025

Year ended

31 March 2024

lncome tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current tax

Deferred tax:

Tax adjustments pertaining to previous years

lncome tax recognised in other comprehensive income comprises:

Deferred tax on remeasurement of post-employment defined benefit obligations

Deferred tax on net gain in debt instruments through OCI

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year:

Profit before tax

Enacted tax rates (%)

Computed expected tax expense

Effect due to non-deductible expenses

Effect due to allowable expenses

Effect due to change in Tax rate

Effect due to Deferred Taxes

Tax adjustments pertaining to previous years

Total income tax expense as per the Statement of Profit and Loss

0.39 (0.31)

0.39 (0.31)

(0.36) (3.171

(0.36) (3.17)

(7.e1)

26.00%

-2.06

2.06

0.39

0.39

lL7.24l
25.OO%

-4.48

4.48

(0.31)

-0.31

v



Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN :U51'l 09W82000PTC092403
148 Camac Street Kolkata-700017
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

18

19

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Commitments and Contigents Liabilities
The Commitments and Contingent Liabilities during the year is NIL (PY is NIL).

Related Party Disclosure
tnformation on Related Party transactions as required by Ind AS-24 for the year ended 31 March 2025

Financial Risk Management

The Company's operational activities expose to various financial risks i.e. market risk, credit risk and risk of liquidity. The Company
realizes that risks are inherent and integral aspect of any business. The primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. This note explains the sources of the risk which

the entity is exposed and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact on the financial statements.

Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk of potential adverse change in the Company's income and the value of the net worth arising from the movement

in foreign exchange rates, interest rates or other market prices.The Company recognises that the effective management of market risk

is essential to the rnaintenance of stable earnings and preservation of shareholder value. The objective of .market risk management to

manage and control market risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising the overall returns.

20

,21

List Of Related Parties
Name of the Related Party Relationship
Mahesh Gupta
Leela Murjani

Director
Director

Relative of Key Management Personne
Name of the Related Partv Relationship
Leena Consultancy Enterprise over which key Managerial Personnel is able to excersie significant influence

Riturai Shares and Securities Ltd Enterprise over which key Manaoerial Personnel is able to excersie significant influence

Riturai Shares and Securities Enterprise over which key Managerial Personnel is able to excersie significant influence

Related Transaction

Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction
Year Ended

March 31,2025
Year Ended

March 31,2024

Mahesh Gupta
Mahesh Gupta
Leela Murjani
Lee & Nee Softwares (Exports) Ltd

Rituraj Shares & Securities Ltd

Riturai Shares & Securities Ltd

Directors Sitting Fees

Reimbursement
Directors Sitting Fees

Payables

Loans & Advances
Receivables

1.60
2.11
1.60

3.80
(4.00)

14.51

1.60

2.11
1.60

(10.6s)
(2e.40)

10.91

Note: During the year ended no amounts written off and written back from/to related parties.

Balance with related

Name of Related Party Nature of Balance
As at March

31,2025
As at March

31,2024

Lee & Nee Softwares (Exports) Ltd Payables 3.80

Leena Consultancy Receivables 150 80 150.80

Riturai Shares & securities Receivables 22.50 22.50

Riturai Shares & securities Ltd. Receivables 25 42 10.91

Riturai Shares & securities Ltd. Loans & Advances 49 47 53.07

Per share

Particulars
Year Ended

March 31,2025
Year Ended

March 31, 2024

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Earnings per share basic and diluted (in INR)

Face Value of Equitv Share

(8.30)

36,200
(22.93)
100.00

(15.s3)
36,200
(46.77)
100 00

(a)



Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
CIN : U5'l 1 09WB2000PTC092403
14B Camac Street Kolkata-7000'17
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 march 2025

(b)

(c)

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt obligations

with floating interest rates.
The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of borrowings and equity.

Price Risks
price risk is the risks that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market traded price. lt arises from

the financial assets such as investment in equig instruments such as bond , mutual funds etc. The Company is exposed to price risk

mainly frorn investments carried at FVOCI whcih are valued using quoted prices in active markets . A sensitivity analysis demonstrating

the impact on change in the market prices of these instruments from the prices existing as at reporting date is given below:-

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparg fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to the credit risk is

influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents , trade receivables and financial assets measured at cost. The Company continously

monitors defaults of customers and their counterparties and incorporates this information into credit risk controls. Credit risk related to

cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits. Other

financial asseb measured at amortised cost excluding deposits of rent. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by

monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continously, while at the same time internal control system in place to ensure the

amounts are within the defined limits.

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as. debtor declaring bankruptcy or litigation decided

against the Company. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce

repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Trade Receivables:-
The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimates of incurred losses in respect of trade receivables .

The allowance account in respect of trade and other receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Company is satisfied

that no recovery of the amount owing is possible. At that point, the financial asset is considered irrecoverables and the amount charged

to the allowance accqunt is wriiten off against the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset.
*€

As the Company does not hold any collateral , the maximum expense to credit risk for each class of financial instrument is the carrying

amount of that class of financialinstrument presented on the statement of financial position. lmpairment of trade receivables is based

on expected credit loss model ( simplistic approach) depending upon the historical date, present financial conditions of customers and

anticipated regulatory changes. Company does not hold any collateral in respect of such receivables.

(ii) Financial lnstruments and Cash Deposits:-
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying

bank deposits. Other financial assets measured at cost excluding deposits on rent. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is

managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system in place ensure

amounts are within specified limits.

(iii) Credit risk exposure
This risk is common to all investors who invest in bonds and debt instruments and it refers to a situation where a particular

bond/debenture issuer is unable to make the expected principal payment interest rate payment, or both. Similarly, a lender bears the

risk that the borrower may default in the payment of contractual interest or principal on its debt obligation, or both. The entity

continuously monitors defaults of the customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk control.

(d)

v

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Year Ended
March 31,2024

lnvestments carried at FVOCI valued using quoted prices in active market 66.21 63.07

66.21 63.07

Particulars
Year Ended

March 31,2024
Year Ended

March 31, 2023

INR -increase by 10%

INR -decrease bv 10%

6.62
(6 62)

6.31
(6.3't)
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(e) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk lhat the company will face in meeting its obligation associated with its flnancial liabilities. The Company's approach to managing liquidity

is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Company maintained a cautious liquidity strategy , with positive cash balance through out the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. Cash flow

from operating actavit,es provides funds io service the financial liabillties on a day{o day basis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure

it has sufficient cash on an going basis to meet operational requirements . Any short term surlpus cash generated over and above the amount required for

working capital management and other operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess is invested

in interest bearing term deposits and other highly marketable instruments with appropriate maturities to optimise the returns on the investments while ensuring

the sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities.

Maturitv profile of financial liabilities
The table below analyse the Company's flnancial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities

As at March 31,2025 0-1 year 1-5 year >5 years Total

Borrowings
Other Current Liabilities 3.89 2 a6

3.89 3.89

As at March 31,2024 0-l year 'l-5 year >5 years Total

Borrowings
Other Current Liabilities 0.27 027

0.27 0.27

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management , capital includes issued equity share capital, share preimum and all other equity reserves attributabie

to equity share holders of the company. The primary objective of the capital management is to maximise shareholder value's

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the flnancial

convenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure , the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders , return on capital io shareholders or

issue of new shares.

Segment Reporting
AS per the requirments of IND AS-108, " Segment Reporting" , no disclosures are required to be made since the company activities consists of a single

business segment i.e Share Trading Business and Brokerage.

Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to the company.

(0

v
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24 Fair Value Measurement

a) Valuation principles

The fair value of the flnancial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to' transfer a liability in an orderly transactions between market participants at the measurement date.

fhe value and fair value of financial instruments are as follows:-

Particulars Note As at March 31 2025 As at March 31 2024

Financial assets

a) Measured at amortised cost
(i) Cash and Cash equivalents
(ii) Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(ili)Trade receivables
(iv) Loans
(v) lnvestment in uquoted equity shares
(iv) Other Financial Assets

b) Measured at fair value through OCI
(i) lnvestment in quoted equity shares
(ii) lnvestment in unquoted equity shares

c) Measured at fair value through PL
(i) lnvestment in mutual fund

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Total Financial Liabilities

7C

74
4.2 &7.2

7.5
4.1

4.3 &7.6

4.1&7.1

7.1

7.56

8.95

198.73
49.08
22.03

119

17.35

8.95
189.42
53.07
22.O3
070

287.54 291.52

65.62 62.56

65.62 62.56

0.59 055
0.59 0.55

353.75 354.63

c) Fair value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the faii values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used, in determining the fair value , the Company has classified its financial
instruments into three-levels prescribed under the accounting standard . An explanation of each level follows underneath:

Level 1:- Quoted prices (unadusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities -"€

Level 2:- lnputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability , either directly or
indirectly
Level 3:- lnputs for assets or liabilities that are not associated on observable market date (unobservable input).

(i) Recognised and measure at fair value
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial assets / liabilities:
As at 31 March 2025

v

Particulars Level 1 Level 2
lnvestment in equity shares
lnvestment in mutual funds

65.62
0.59
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(ii) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:-
(a) Long term fixed rates receivables/ borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on the parameters such as interest rates
and credit worthiness of the customers and the risk characteristic of the financed project. Based on the evaluations , allowances
are taken into account for the expected losses of these receivables.

(b) The fair value of the loans from banks and financial liabilities as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by

discounting future cash flows using the rates currently available for debt on similar terms , credit risk and remaining maturities.

Their valuation requires managment to use observable inputs in the model , management regularly assessses a range of
reasonably possible for those significant unobservable inputs and determines the imapct on the total fair value.

}

As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Level 1 Level 2

lnvestment in equity shares
lnvestment in mutual funds

62.56
0.55
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Rituraj Shares Broking Private Limited
GIN : U5{ { 09W82000PTC092403
14B Camac Street Kolkata-700017
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3t March 2025

As per our report of even date attached

For N H Agrawal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration :03275'l1E

Number: '129179

Fti 8u LNrF
Place: Kolkata
Datedr 29-05-2025

(All amount in Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Other Additional Regulatory lnformation as per Schedule lll

Dlsclosure in relation to undisclosed income : The Company have not any such transaction whtch is not recorded tn the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period ending 3'1st March, 2025 and also for the period ending

31 st March, 2024 tn the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1 961 (such as, search or survey or any olher relevant provisions

of the lncome Tax Act, '1 961).

Retationship with Struck off Companies : The Company do not have any transactions with company's struck off during the period

ending 31st March, 2025 and also for the period ending 31st March.2024.

Details of Benami Property held : The Company do not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending

against the Company during the period ending 3'1st l\4arch, 2A25 and also for the period ending 31st [,4arch, 2024 for holding any

Benarni property.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar oi Companies (ROC) : The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction

which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. during the period ending 3lst March, 2025 and also for the period

ending 31 st March, 2024.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency : The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during

the period ending 31 st March. 2025 and also for the period ending 31 st Match, 2024.

Utilisation of Borrowed Fund & Share Premium :

L The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ias), including foreign entities

(lntermediaries) with the understanding that the lnteimediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or

the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
tt. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parly) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otheruise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Group has not entered into any scheme ofarrangement which has an accounting impact on the current or previous financial year.

Audit Trail - As per the newly inserted rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2021, the Group has useC accounting

software for maintaining its books of accounts which have a feature of recording audit trail(edit log) facility and the same has

been enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Further there is no

instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

lmpact of New Labour Codes

The lndian Parliament has approved 4 Labour Codes viz : The Code on Wages, 2019, The Code on Social Security, 2020, The lndustrial

Relations Code, 2020 and The Occupational Safety Health and Working Conditions, 2020 subsuming many existing labour legislations.

Thesewouldimpactthecontributionsbythe GrouptowardsProvidentFund,BonusandGratuity.Theeffectivedatefromwhichthe
codes and rules will be applicable is yet to be notified. The Group will assess the impact and its valuation and will give appropriate

impact in its financial statements in the period(s) in which, the Codes become effective and the related rules to determine the financial

impact are notified.

Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and Deposits of which confirmations are not received from the parties are subiect to

reconciliation and consequential adjustments on determination/ receipt of such confirmation.

The management has evaluated all activities ofthe Compnay through May 28,2025 and concluded that there were no additional

subsequent events required to be reflected in this flnancial statements.

Financials have been prepared after incorporating adjustments for regrouped/ rearranged retrospectively, where necessary, to

conform to the current year's presentation.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

s)

h)
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